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	 The deceased glide into a world that differs from this one only in its diminished intensity. The living enter the 
world of the cemetery which differs from the hustle and bustle of modernity presenting one with tranquility and silence. 
Cemeteries aren’t just for the deceased. They are also for the living. The cemetery is a different place, a quieter space and 
those of today are viewed differently than they once were: From an abode of the dead to a cultural institution for the living. 
Cemeteries started to be viewed this way since the 19th century. 
	 Through the last one hundred and seventy three years Beloit has not only provided a dwelling for the dead but also 
a site for the living, for those who find them interesting as something to study, for those families of the deceased. Loved 
ones visit with flowers and prayerful thoughts and take a moment at the grave in the whispering quiet of Oakwood, Beloit’s 
first official cemetery which opened in 1840 and was named, as the record shows, by Mrs. W. Doland. The area was then 
a bucolic setting on eleven acres. There are today 18,468 grave spaces at this old place some of which are occupied, some 
not. In 1944 there were 9000 grave spaces on 28 acres and acreage hasn’t increased since then. There is some confusion 
as to Beloit’s first unofficial cemetery with Mechanics Green mentioned as site of the first burial. More concrete evidence 
suggests Horace White Park, known as the Public Park, as the first cemetery established in 1837. It is from Horace White 
Park that Eleazer Crane (d.1837), Chloe Blodgett(d.1838) and Caleb Blodgett (d.1840) were removed to be re-buried at 
Oakwood when it became official that Oakwood would be Beloit’s cemetery. These latter two people were, so to speak, 
the mother and father of Beloit. It was Caleb who greeted members of the New England Emigrating Company when they 
arrived in the later part of 1836. Oakwood is home to Beloit’s founders and its first builders.
	 This is a cemetery decorated with an array of statuary, some of it impressive and interesting. Adorning the graves of 
August and Sophia Milton, John and Elizabeth Dunbar, Richard and Emma Martin, Charles and Mary Burrow, Samuel and 
Ann Pye and Kate Grout, are cement trees. These were fashionable for cemeteries of the Victorian period and it is certain 
that all of them were built by Jackson Monument (Alvin Jackson 1832-1921). Made of Bedford Stone (from Bedford, 
Indiana) the most dramatic of these is that of Kate Grout who died in 1884 at the age of 21. Kate, it was said, had a habit 
of taking her book, writing pad and binoculars outside to read, write and look at things while sitting under a tree. Trying to 
ride out a summer storm of one of those Victorian days she was struck by lightning and killed. Her parents commemorated 
the site of her burial at Oakwood, appropriately, with a cement tree with a niche carved into it where she would have 
leaned into the tree for support. This tree monument (pictured right) is located close to another one that is prominent in 
Oakwood and that is the Broder Mausoleum. Probably a novella could be written about the Broder girls alone, particularly 

The dead and the living:
A little bit about Oakwood cemetery
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(pictured on cover) which opened in 
1922 with its first burial being in 1923. 
East Lawn has triple the acreage of 
Oakwood offering 90+ acres and 31,273 
grave spaces. The first person buried 
at East Lawn was Jeanette Jensen, 11 
April 1923. There are other cemeteries 

to mention, such as Calvary (1882), 
pictured above, and Mount Thabor 
(1944), pictured right, both of these 
Catholic. Others mentioned in the files 
are another Catholic cemetery which was 
located on the Janvrin Farm (1850) and 
one called Twilight Rest in the vicinity 
of Beloit’s old Plaza (1883). This latter 
one was never used.
	 On 4 October 1954 Bill Behling 
wrote an interesting article on Beloit’s 
two principal cemeteries. He mentioned 

that, on average, throughout the year, 
there were seven burials between 
Oakwood and East Lawn. He also 

mentioned that at Oakwood from 1840-
1954 there were 10,277 burials and at 
East Lawn from 1923-1954, 5,723. He 
discussed that it 
took 6-10 full time 
people to maintain 
the two cemeteries 
and that a lot of 
manual labor 
was saved with 
purchase, in 1953, 
of a mechanical 
grave digger at a 
cost of $5,300.00. 
Such a tool is in 
use today and it is 
much needed.

An Evening at Lincoln Center on Feb. 7 will feature a visitor from the Civil War 
era, Cordelia Harvey (played by Mary Kababik, pictured).

A social time will run from 5:30-6 p.m., with a catered meal served at 6 and the program at 7 
p.m. Cost is $35 for members and $40 for non members.

Cordelia Harvey was a philanthropist, nurse, and teacher who organized relief 
for Wisconsin soldiers and their children during and after the Civil War. She was called 
Wisconsin’s Florence Nightingale as a result of her humanitarian work. 

She and her husband, Louis, came from Kenosha to reside for a while in Clinton and later in 
Shopiere where they ran a store. He later became governor of Wisconsin, but died prematurely. 
After a brief period of mourning, Cordelia picked up where her late husband had left off.

Those who visited the Civil War Museum in Racine this past year saw Ms. Kababik in a 
marvelous portrayal of the woman who became known as the Wisconsin Angel.

Beloit Historical Society will sponsor its Second Annual Chicago Flower 
and Garden Show bus trip to Navy Pier on March 18.

A reduced round trip price has been set at $40 for members and $45 for non mem-
bers. Those who wait to make reservations will pay $5 more per person. To make 
reservations by Jan. 31, please include names and addresses of those attending, 
along with payment and mail to B.H.S. Lincoln Center, 845 Hackett St., Beloit. For 
information call 365-7835.

The coach will leave Beloit Historical Society’s Lincoln Center, 845 Hackett St., at 
7:30 a.m. Coffee and rolls will be available in the center’s lobby from 7-7:30 a.m. 
The bus is slated to be back in Beloit between 5:30 and 6 p.m.  

The show features more than 20 gardens designed to inspire gardeners to trans-
form any outdoor space, whether a front yard or a window box. More than 100 
vendors will showcase their gardening, landscape and horticulture products 
and services, while horticulture experts will lead seminars daily.
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Broder, but 
also on the 

“murder” of 
the brother 

Paul, the fight 
waged against 

the city and the 
Catholic church, but suffice it here 

to merely state that the mausoleum 
was, and still is, an impressive 
structure dedicated to the good 
Catholic family of Jacob Broder who 
came to Beloit in 1849. The sepulcher 
(pictured below) was built in 1883. 
There are also two others of less 
ornate design: those of Keller-Morse 
and Edward and Hannah Rutledge. 
Then there are the spire-like markers 
that shoot up to 
the trees like those 
marking the graves 
of Allen, Shaw, 
Hackett, Spenser, 
Merrill and Peet 
just to mention 
a few. And 
there are statues 
commemorating 
Beloit’s soldier dead, erected in 1905, 
and another one called the Hiker, 
representing those soldiers who died 
in the Spanish American War and 
erected in 1926. 

	 Aside from 
the statuary, there are the stories of 
the dead like the one of George Mack 
murdered by his wife and accomplices 
in 1878, and then there’s the one about 
Albert Wirtz the Titanic victim, and 
that of Joseph Bowling, the African 
American, one of Beloit’s first, who 
became a respected bootmaker and 
then the one of Johnny Strothers who 
was the only Black man in Rock 
County to fight in the Civil War. And 
speaking of the Civil War there are 
three soldiers from that war and from 
the famous Iron Brigade who are also 
buried at Oakwood. 
	 Arguably the most famous 
person buried there is Roy Chapman 
Andrews, the adventurer and scientist 
who discovered that dinosaurs laid 

eggs. Then there 
are all those older 
others who built 
Beloit such as 
the Blodgetts, 
the Goodhues, 
the Bicknells, the 
Colleys, the Howes 
and the Hobarts.
	 There have 

been three additions of land made to 
Oakwood since it opened. There have 
been no additions since 1944. What the 
city did for more space was to create 
another cemetery called East Lawn 

As sober and as sad as death and burials can be 
we leave you with a little, perhaps morbid, humor 
expressed on headstones that reach across America.

From a cemetery in Lincoln, Maine:
 Here lies the body of Susan Lowder
Who burst while drinking Sedlitz powder
Called from this world to her heavenly rest
She should have waited till it effervesced
(1798)

From Hollis, New Hampshire
 Here the old man lies,

No one laughs and no one cries.
Where he’s gone or how he fares
No one knows and no one cares.

(But his brother, James, and his wife, Emeline, they 
were his friends all the time.)

And this final one, origin unknown
At three score winters end I died
A careless being sole and sad
The nuptial knot I never tied
And wish my father never had

Who reads these epitaphs but the living? Who 
inspires them but the deceased? Cemeteries are 
abodes to a great many stories which don’t end with 
a stone and an inscription.

Number of Burials
 in Beloit 

2005	 166
2006    172 
2007    176
2008  178
2009  148
2010  161
2011  185 
2012  170
Nov 2013   158

If you enjoy Beloit history, we need you! 
The Society is need of volunteers for the office to do data entry and help with our 
facebook page. We also need volunteers to help with our collections. If this sounds like 
fun to you, please call us at 365-7835! 

Volunteers Wanted
The Society most sincerely thanks those families who listed the 
Society as recipient for memorials. We received memorials in the 
name of Margaret Grauel, David Collins and Bradley Bowman.

In Memoriam


